
KCLS Board Meeting   Page 1 28 March 2006 

MOTIONS APPROVED 
 
1. Motion to approve the Board Agenda as amended 
2. Minutes from February 28, 2006 were deemed approved 
3. Motion to approve Payroll expenditures 
4. Motion to approve General Fund #0010 expenditures 
5. Motion to approve Construction Bond Fund ’88 #3020 expenditures 
6. Motion to approve Capital Project Fund 2005 #3070 expenditures 
7. Motion to approve Gift Fund #6010 expenditures 
8. Motion to approve site selection for the Newcastle Library (vacant lot at 129th Avenue SE) 
9. Motion to approve preferred site for the Sammamish Library (Sammamish Commons) 
10. Motion to adjourn the meeting early 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Charlotte Spitzer called the meeting to order at 5:09pm. 

 

King County Library System 
Board of Trustees 

Black Diamond Community Center 
5pm ♦ 28 March 2006 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Garry Kampen, a resident of Newcastle, urged the Board to select the vacant site at 129th 
Avenue SE rather than co-locating at the City’s preferred site. He said the vacant site has great 
trail access and is an easy walk from Lake Boren Park, while the City’s proposal is not people-
friendly. He said the City’s plan detracts from the Community Business Center plan by placing a 
large building and parking garage on the City’s north/south spine. He said the new library should 
be designed to support KCLS’ needs, not the needs of city officials. He added that a new City 
Hall is unnecessary and the City is already committed to the Coal Creek Parkway project.  
 
James Bowen distributed a packet of materials to the Board, as well as a copy of an article from 
the March 2006 edition of Alki and a document titled “What We Know – Tip of the Iceberg Primer 
on KCLS Clustering.” He emphasized that KCLS has been repeatedly asked for information as to 
why clustering is necessary, but pointed out that no evidence has been found that clustering is a 
national trend, nor has it been proven that clustering is necessary because of the 1.0% funding 
restriction (since revenues actually grow 3.2% when new construction and other sources of 
revenue are included). He also questioned that clustering provides equity of services to patrons. 
He reiterated his belief that unsubstantiated reasons have been given for clustering. After 
requesting various documents to better understand the decision to move forward with 
clustering, James Bowen asked that the Board of Trustees be willing to schedule community 
meetings with patrons to openly discuss their view of the results of clustering on their 
neighborhood library and its role in the community. He said such vital dialogue would mitigate a 
belief that the facts and evidence compiled to-date is being avoided and dismissed.  
 
Kelly Jones presented two statements: one on behalf of former staff member Barbara Brainin, as 
well as her own. In her written statement, which was read aloud, Barbara Brainin explained that 
she resigned her position after nearly 16 years at the Richmond Beach Library in direct response 
to clustering and the rotation of staff. She highlighted the impact clustering had on relationships 
with library patrons, the challenges faced when Library Assistants with different job descriptions 

were expected to perform the same tasks in different size libraries and the loss of “tacit knowledge” and 
“collective memories.” In her own statement, Kelly Jones, a Children’s librarian at the Richmond Beach Library, 
said she attempted to keep an open mind when the library was clustered. She said she examined whether the 
change increased or lowered the quality of service to families and determined that, just as when she was a new 
or substitute librarian, patrons no longer built on their previous library experiences. She said she considered 
whether staff rotation was worth the costs in services and if the goal of staffing flexibility and consistency of 

PRESENT 
 

KCLS BOARD 
Judge Richard Eadie 

Charlotte Spitzer 
Judge LeRoy McCullough 

Lucy Krakowiak 
 

KCLS Staff 
Bill Ptacek 

Linda Glenicki 
Charlene Richards 

Denise Siers 
Nancy Smith 

Jeanne Thorsen 
Jed Moffitt 

Kay Johnson 
Jennifer Wiseman 

Dri Ralph 
Angelina Benedetti 

 

GUESTS 
Garry Kampen 
James Bowen 

Kelly Jones 
Luraine MacCleod  

Viola Mullins 
Lisa Johnson 

Radhika Kumar 
Lynda Jenkins 

H. David Kaplan 
Margaret Nelson 

Laure Iddings 
Bob Eaton 

Lori & Gary Robinson 
Pat Boogaerts 

Warren Messer 
Camile Wilson 

Richard Barnes 
Betty Culbert 

M. Barnes 
Michael Nelson 
Linda Johnson 

Donna Price 
Karen Thielke 

Michelle Hillyer 
Sandy Gage 
Jaime Swift 
Sue Beverly 

Barbara Morriss 
Jennifer Burianek 

Mayor Jean Garber 
Mary Pritchard 

Cory Olson 
Sara Denman 

Rosemarie Carrel 
Barbara Spindel 
Michele Petitti 



KCLS Board Meeting   Page 2 28 March 2006 

service could be met. While she acknowledged that KCLS must guard its resources, she said she resigned her 
position because she would not stay to provide merely basic service to families who deserved better. She said 
the bonds between staff and their communities are something even under-funded California libraries can afford.   
 
Luraine MacCleod said that she and her husband consider the accessibility of the Federal Way 320th Library one 
of its best benefits. She said the relocation of the library should not be considered. She emphasized that: library 
users can walk, ride or drive to the current library with relative ease and safety; KCLS already owns the current 
location which has ample room for expansion; and taxpayers voted to replace, not relocate the Federal Way 
320th Library. She cautioned that the proposed location serves only those who drive automobiles and said a 
library at the Transit Center will not be a revenue generator as the City hopes. She said the Federal Way 320th 
Library deserves to be improved as itself, not as “side dressing” to a transit hub. In her opinion, relocating a 
library next to the Transit Center makes as much sense as transplanting an elementary school there. She told the 
Board to ask themselves if they’ve been dealing honestly with the public by reinterpreting the language of the 
bond measure. By recognizing the validity of the reasons for keeping the library where it is, she said KCLS has a 
golden opportunity to redeem itself in eyes of the public.  
 
Viola Mullins, a 39-year resident of Federal Way, said 11 additional petition pages have been collected against 
moving the Federal Way 320th Library. She said she collected signatures because the library is important to her 
and her neighbors. She emphasized that she took her kids and her grandchildren to the library via the bus, which 
picks-up and drops off patrons outside the current library. She said parents don’t want their children going to 
the Transit Center alone or with other kids and asked the Board not to move the library.  
 
Lisa Johnson said she’s concerned about safety at the site next to the transit facility. She said she rides the bus 
to work and has witnessed less than desirable activities occurring near the bus stop. She mentioned that a library 
would provide a convenient place for transients to hang out, which is undesirable for mothers and children using 
the library. She said it should not be incumbent on staff to mitigate such uses of the library. She mentioned that 
KCLS would need to hire security personnel if the library was relocated, much like the Seattle and Tacoma public 
libraries have. She pointed out that a multi-level garage poses serious problems, despite the fact Sound Transit 
has monitors throughout them. She reiterated that the current location helps stave off the downtown problems 
from the library, which has an aesthetic feel for a community library. The site near the Transit Center has too 
much of an urban feel and is better suited for office retail.  
 
Because librarians are the meticulous guardians of library resources, Radika Kumar said she’s learned to trust 
that KCLS is looking out for her best interests. Thus, she implicitly believed the promotional information about 
2004 bond measure, that a new 15,000-square-foot replacement Federal Way 320th Library would be built on the 
current site. She stated that promotional materials, produced in-house on KCLS’ printing press, must have been 
subjected to a rigorous examination and someone with great moral and legal standing in KCLS’ hierarchy, must 
have approved the wording. She emphasized that KCLS is a guardian of words, especially written words. Without 
written words, there is no library and no circulation. She suggested that the Dewey decimal system should work 
to classify all in house publications as non-fiction. She said she was confused by a recent Tacoma News Tribune 
article which quotes staff saying KCLS is not legally bound to keep the library at its current site. She went on to 
discuss the power of the written word, as a Henry David Thoreau’s essay influenced Gandhi who inspired others. 
If the library cannot be held to its word, she asked if the voters are still bound by the bonds. She said Lynda 
Jenkins is responsible for bearing witness to her signature when she votes, which when used in conjunction with 
her vote means she reaffirms the Declaration of Independence. She told the Board, trustees of these signatures, 
to guard them well.  
 
Lynda Jenkins said she feels the Federal Way 320th Library has a sense of community, place and belonging. She 
said she was 21 when she came to Federal Way and the library was one of the first places she went to increase 
her personal knowledge and checkout books for herself and her children. She recalled her excitement when the 
library was built in 1970, and later rebuilt after it was burned down. She expressed sadness that we live in a 
“throw away” society and asked the Board to consider preserving the patrons’ history of culture of belonging; 
something the community can’t have if things continue to be moved around. 
 
H. David Kaplan said KCLS is losing the voters’ respect. He emphasized that the promotional flyer calling for 
replacement of the Federal Way 320th Library on the current site was explicit. He pointed out that there is room 
for expansion on the current site and that the library can be moved to a vacant building during the rebuild. He 
noted that the response to the October 13, 2005 meeting was decisively negative and reiterated that KCLS has a 
legal, moral and ethical obligation to build the expanded library on current site. If KCLS wants to build on a 
different site, they need to hold another election. He asked the Board not to breach the public trust.  
 



KCLS Board Meeting   Page 3 28 March 2006 

Margaret Nelson said she is disappointed with the incorrect information given the Board about the distance 
between the Federal Way Regional and Federal Way 320th libraries. While the November 29, 2005 minutes state 
that the libraries are “less than one mile” apart, she said a MapQuest inquiry shows they are 1.93 miles driving 
distance apart. If the Federal Way 320th Library is moved, the distance between the two libraries is 2.58 miles 
(an improved distance change of only 0.65 miles). She also made a comparison between the current and 
proposed location of the Federal Way 320th Library and its proximity to schools, stating that the only schools the 
Transit Center site is closer to are Truman Alternative High and the Boys and Girls Club for Teens.  
 
On behalf of the Maple Valley City Council, Mayor Laure Iddings said the community values the local library, 
knowing it has long served the residents of the City. While she said the library is a source of local pride, she took 
an opportunity to address some concerns the City Council has regarding levels of service at the library. First, she 
encouraged KCLS to maintain a strong neighborhood connection. She said she understands the need for increased 
efficiencies and management options that have come with clustering, but mentioned that Councilmembers have 
heard from constituents that the level of service has been impacted and the community connection diminished. 
She asked the Board to seriously reconsider clustering, which has decreased the consistency of staff and long-
term face-to-face familiarities. In addition, Laure Iddings said the Council is concerned about the financial 
implications for the integrity of KCLS if the inequities of the current reciprocal agreement with the Seattle 
Public Library continue. She explained that the Board has the support of the Council in trying to reach an 
equitable distribution of financial responsibility in relation to partnering agencies.  
 
Pat Boogaerts, President of the Maple Valley Library Guild and Chair of the Library Advisory Board said she has 
received no input from citizens at meetings of the library guild or advisory board related to clustering. She said 
the Library Advisory Board is concerned that patrons see new and different staff in the library (of the 58 
employees in the cluster, 31 of them rotate between libraries) and added that Self-Checkout also contributes to 
the lack of interaction between patrons and staff. She mentioned that a lot of the staff spends their time in the 
back room, rather than on the floor meeting the patrons. She acknowledged that people don’t like change and 
said clustering was approached poorly with staff and patrons, but that it doesn’t mean it won’t work. She said 
patrons need to give clustering a chance if it’s a money saving issue. She also expressed her unhappiness that 
KCLS previously agreed to accept $104,000 instead of the $600,000 SPL owed in cross-use. She said the Board has 
a fiduciary responsibility not to give away $1 million to SPL. As a library lover, who doesn’t like idea of cutting 
services off, she said the current situation is inequitable.  
 
Warren Messer, who has lived in Maple Valley for 30 years, said the library is the greatest thing in the 
community. He said he has visited it everyday since it was built and came to know all the staff, but because of 
clustering, doesn’t know anyone anymore. He said he had a routine and knew who to ask when he had a 
problem. Now, newer people don’t know him or how to answer his questions. He emphasized that when people 
know what’s going on and their input is listened to, they’re more apt to go along with a decision.  
 
Michael Nelson stated that Black Diamond deserves a larger library. He also applauded the trustees who are 
working for free to improve the Library System. He said the people of King County have one of the best library 
systems in the region. He emphasized his opposition to moving the new/expanded Burien Library to the 
downtown are because of parking limitations and his affinity for the current library site. He asked the Board to 
keep libraries away from the center of towns so patrons can park more easily. He also said he doesn’t like idea 
of trustees working for free, so he recommended a nominal fee of $1,000 per month.  
 
Newcastle Mayor Jean Garber said she feels she needs to clarify the seemingly conflicting statements regarding 
the City’s preferred site made at the March 21 meeting. She said the City received a signed Letter of Intent from 
the property owner, which at the property owner’s request included a section concerning the use of eminent 
domain. She said the property owner also wanted to make it known that he would require an official City Council 
resolution initiating the condemnation process as a precondition to negotiating a purchase agreement, although 
he had no intent that the City would actually have to complete the condemnation process. Mayor Garber 
thanked the Board for the opportunity to talk about the City’s civic center vision, and for granting additional 
time so KCLS could hold a public meeting in Newcastle. She emphasized the City’s desire to build the best city 
possible, consistent with our adopted plans. Although it is still the City’s preference to have KCLS participate in 
the civic center project, she said the important thing is that a library will be built in Newcastle. She offered to 
answer any questions the Board may have about the civic center during their deliberations. 
 
Sue Beverly, a resident of Newcastle for 25 years, said she has been a library patron since before she could read. 
She said, without reservation, that KCLS is the greatest Library System she has ever seen. If KCLS is going to 
keep it that way, she said KCLS must maintain service to customers as a priority. She acknowledged the appeal 
of a joint project, but said it’s not possible in Newcastle at this time as the City’s vision of a civic center won’t 



KCLS Board Meeting   Page 4 28 March 2006 

be reality soon enough. She emphasized that KCLS has a contract on a site in the downtown with room for 
parking and sufficient bus and pedestrian access. She said the City has had two years to study the feasibility of 
this project, while the cost of construction goes up 10% a year. She expressed her support for the vacant site.  
 
Mary Pritchard, President of the Friends of the Covington Library, said she tried to keep an open mind about 
clustering when KCLS began more than 3 years ago. Unfortunately, she said patrons don’t like it and miss seeing 
someone they know. She said the community gave up when they weren’t asked for input. Regarding the 
Covington Library expansion, she said she would never support another KCLS election as she is displeased with 
the fact that the 10,000-square-foot expansion is now only 7,400-square-feet. As a member of the steering 
committee, she said she was not listened to and is tired of people saying, “I thought we were going to get [x].” 
Finally, she said the imbalance with Seattle Public Library should have been taken care of several years ago.  
 
Sammamish Mayor Michele Petitti suggested the Board limit public comments to 3 to 5 minutes, as it helps the 
Board to get business done. She said she is encouraged that KCLS is considering siting the new/expanded library 
at the Sammamish Commons, which includes a new city hall, a skate park and traffic access at a stoplight. She 
reiterated the concerns voiced at the well-attended public meeting on March 20 that a 20,000-square-foot 
library is not big enough for their growing community with one-third of the population 18 years or younger.  
 
Rosemary Carrel, a Sammamish resident, said she is disappointed in the three site options. While she likes the 
Sammamish Commons site, she expressed concerns about environmental issues with each site and reiterated it is 
important for KCLS to control its own future by owning its own property (not possible at the Lake Washington 
School District site). She said the current library, which was built after 10 years of requests, was built half as 
large as it needed to be. The community is still growing and needs something larger than 20,000-square-feet. 
She asked what KCLS was going to do when, in five years, the library is already too small. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 
Richard Eadie moved approval of the agenda. LeRoy McCullough seconded and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 
There having been no changes to the draft February 28, 2006 minutes, they were deemed approved.  
 
FINANCE REPORT 
 
Linda Glenicki reviewed current finances noting February expenditures were $5.7 million versus a monthly 
budget average of $6.8 million. Year-to-date expenditures are $11.8 million (14.4% of budget versus 16.7% of the 
year completed). The following General Fund expenditure items were called out: 
 

♦ Staff Development: Expenditures are showing an increase over prior year primarily due to the tuition 
assistance program, which has an increased budget in 2006. 

♦ Operating Leases: High expenditure rate versus budget is attributed to an accounting convention which 
evens out by year-end. 

♦ Repairs and Maintenance: A primary driver of the increased costs versus prior year is the outsourcing of 
some contracted services, such as landscaping.  

 
She also referred the Board to the final December 2005 expenditures report, which shows full-year expenditures 
of $75.7 million or 95.3% of the budget. 
 
February revenues were $1.1 million, primarily from receipt of current year property taxes. Year-to-date 
revenues are $1.5 million (versus $1.4 million in 2005). Miscellaneous revenues include $13,000 for the sale of 
four surplused fleet vehicles. Credit card revenues were 21.4% of revenue (essentially flat versus January).  
 
Expenditures from the 307 Capital Project Fund 2005 in February were $165,000, including $67,000 related to 
consulting services and a project development permit for the expanded Covington Library. In addition, 
expenditures of $46,000 in Newcastle include $40,000 in earnest money for the vacant site. The credit in Burien 
reflects payment of $39,000 for architectural services netted against receipt of $43,000 as reimbursement from 
the City of Burien for their share of project-related charges. Expenditures in the 302 Fund in February were 
$13,000, including $10,000 for the renewal of KCLS’ property purchase option in Black Diamond.  



KCLS Board Meeting   Page 5 28 March 2006 

PAYMENT OF BILLS 
 
Richard Eadie moved approval of Payroll Expenditures in the amount of $2,089,061.46; Checks February 
1-15th Chk #: 116770-117808; 130610-130790 and February 16-28th Chk #: 117809-118852; 130791-
130969. Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Lucy Krakowiak moved approval of General Fund #0010 Expenditures February 2006 in the amount of 
$6,265,944.75; (Travel Advances) Chk #768-781, (2/7) Chk #88460-88591, (2/10) Chk #88594-88662, 
(2/13) Chk #88665-88735, (2/14) Chk #88739; 88740-88839, (2/16) Chk #88841-88876; 88879-88885, 
(2/17) Chk #88886-88989; 88990-89000; 89001-89004, (2/21) Chk #89005-89070, (2/24) Chk #89074-
89076; 89077-89130; 89134-89200, (3/1) Chk #89207-89293, (3/2) Chk #89306-89353; 89354, (3/3) Chk 
#89355-89364; 89365-89368; 89369, (Voids) Chk # 88733. Richard Eadie seconded and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
  
LeRoy McCullough moved approval of Construction Bond Fund ’88 #3020 Expenditures February 2006 in the 
amount of $53,650.74; (2/7) Chk #88592, (2/13) Chk #88736, (2/24) Chk #89201-89205, (3/1) Chk #89294-
89297. Richard Eadie seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Richard Eadie moved approval of Capital Project Fund 2005 #3070 Expenditures for February 2006 in the 
amount of $249,585.83; (2/7) Chk #88593, (2/13) Chk #88737-88738, (2/16) Chk #88840; 88877-88878, 
(2/21) Chk #89071-89073, (2/24) Chk #89206, (3/1) Chk #89298-89305, (3/3) Chk #89370. LeRoy 
McCullough seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
  
Luck Krakowiak moved approval of Gift Fund #6010 Expenditures for February 2006 in the amount of 
$975.36; (2/10) Chk #88663-88664, (2/24), Chk #89131-89133, (3/3) Chk #89371. LeRoy McCullough 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
SITE SELECTION – NEW NEWCASTLE LIBRARY 
 
Bill Ptacek referred the Board to the summary of public comments from the meeting on Tuesday, March 21 at 
The Golf Club at Newcastle. He introduced Dri Ralph who briefly highlighted the staff analysis of the two sites 
with a focus on the final four criteria: 
 
♦ Cost and Availability:  

o KCLS has a contract for the vacant parcel on 129th Avenue SE ($2 million) on which KCLS would retain all 
air rights. KCLS has made $60,000 in non-refundable payments (applicable to the purchase price) for this 
site. An additional $20,000 non-refundable payment (applicable to the purchase price) is due mid-April. 
Every month thereafter, an additional $12,000 non-refundable payment (not applicable to the purchase 
price) will be due. This site, which is ready for outright purchase and development, rates high.  

 
o The City of Newcastle has offered KCLS a parcel at 132nd Avenue SE for the same price ($2 million) and 

the City will vacate the right-of-way on the northwest corner to increase the size of the parcel. The City 
would retain the air rights for the parcel to facilitate co-development. The process for gaining ownership 
of the lot is in question. If the City were to exercise power of eminent domain, the process could take as 
long as 8 months to complete. Due to the uncertain time frame for development, this site ranks low.  

 
♦ Community Preference: Of the public comments on record, 34 specifically state that they support building 

on the vacant site, 11 support the City’s site, three expressed concern with the City’s site without stating a 
preference for the vacant site and two comments addressed the feasibility of the City site. At a special City 
Council meeting Monday, April 11, the elected officials voted 5 to 2 in favor of the City’s proposed site. 

 
♦ Lease versus Purchase/Long-Term Viability: Because the City would retain air rights above the library on 

their preferred site, KCLS would not control that development. As a result, the vacant site ranks higher.  
 
♦ Partnerships: KCLS hasn’t precluded the option of co-location on the vacant site, but because no formal 

partnerships are set and there are opportunities on the City’s preferred site, the vacant site ranks lower.  
 
In summary, Dri Ralph explained that the vacant site is more cost effective and is ready for immediate outright 
purchase and development. Public comment is in favor of developing on this site and KCLS would retain control 
over how the library is developed, which may include co-location. There is also cost for further delay in the 
purchasing of this parcel. On the other hand, she pointed out that the elected officials support the site at 132nd 



KCLS Board Meeting   Page 6 28 March 2006 

Avenue SE. Allowing an additional 90 feasibility study period would show support their vision for a Civic Complex 
at this location and would allows KCLS to participate in a mixed-use development. Parking capacity could be 
increased if Sound Transit builds a structure at this location.  
 
Charlotte Spitzer asked what the delay is in either scenario. Kay Johnson explained that KCLS is working to hire a 
project management company to give staff capacity for the bond-related projects. Once that team is on board, 
KCLS can begin the process of selecting an architect for the new Newcastle Library, followed by issuance of a 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for contractors to develop library. 
 
Richard Eadie emphasized his respect for the City’s vision and desire for a Civic Center; however, he said there 
are too many uncertainties about how and if it will be built so putting off selection of a site for another 90 days 
was unacceptable. He also expressed concern about KCLS loss of air rights as it pertains to future expansion and 
use. With all due respect to the officials of the City of Newcastle, and in interests of patrons to be served, 
Richard Eadie moved approval to site the new Newcastle Library on the vacant parcel at 129th Avenue SE. 
LeRoy McCullough seconded and the motion passed unanimously. LeRoy McCullough thanked the community 
for sharing their vision and emphasized the importance of having the library built as soon as possible. He said 
that the vacant site can and will be utilized in a manner consistent with Newcastle’s vision. While possibilities 
exist for either site, Lucy Krakowiak said the vacant site is more appropriate from a timing standpoint.  
 
SITE SELECTION – SAMMAMISH LIBRARY 
 
Kay Johnson indicated the site options on 228th Avenue in Sammamish, which include a nearly six acre lot at Main 
Street, a 12-acre site owned by the Lake Washington School District and a parcel as part of the Sammamish 
Commons development. Bill Ptacek explained that many people expressed concern at the public meeting on 
Monday, March 20 that the new library will be too small. He pointed out that KCLS intends to build at least a 
20,000-square-foot Sammamish Library, as indicated in the bond, but would examine the feasibility of building a 
larger library, which could be facilitated by the sale of the current library. He cautioned that KCLS’ ability to do 
so will be constrained by the cost of operating it (staff, materials, etc.). He mentioned that the property owner 
west of the Sammamish Commons site may be willing to subdivide and sell a portion of his property to KCLS. 
  
Bill Ptacek said the site at the Sammamish Commons rated highest against KCLS’ Site Selection Criteria. Public 
comments and input from elected officials support development of the expanded library at the Sammamish 
Commons. He mentioned that environmental issues need to be explored for any site and pointed out that the 
Lake Washington School District has no plans to sell the property, so it would be leased. Bill Ptacek explained 
that the Board is not being asked to decide which site to purchase, but rather to indicate which to begin due 
diligence on. LeRoy McCullough moved to authorize staff to pursue the Sammamish Commons as the 
primary site for the expanded Sammamish Library. Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the motion passed 
unanimously. Richard Eadie clarified that the Board is essentially selecting this site unless substantial problems 
or something unanticipated arises.  
 
BLACK DIAMOND LIBRARY COMMUNITY STUDY 
 
Denise Siers introduced Carla Hopkins, Managing Librarian of the Black Diamond, Maple Valley and Covington 
library cluster. Carla Hopkins presented the community study (www.kcls.org/communitystudies/).  
 
RELATIONSHIP WITH SEATTLE PUBLIC LIBRARY (SPL) 
 
Denise Siers reviewed the feedback gathered from Friends of the Library and Library Advisory Boards (27 groups 
representing 21 communities). The feedback, intended to supplement the public telephone survey, was gathered 
with the help of the Cluster Community Liaisons. Similar to the telephone survey, wide disagreement in opinion 
exists across the represented groups on all questions. Results generally indicate, however, that King County 
residents feel it important for patrons of both systems to have free access to library service; however, they feel 
SPL must reimburse KCLS for a reasonable part of the imbalance. If the imbalance is not paid, King County 
residents generally believe services to Seattle residents should be restricted.  
 
Bill Ptacek said KCLS sent SPL a letter on March 21 recapping the history of reciprocal borrowing between the 
Library Systems, reviewing the process for and results of the most recent cross-use study and asking SPL to work 
with KCLS to create an agreement that can stand as a long-term solution to this issue. The letter indicates that 
KCLS has offered several options, ranging from cash payment to non-revenue reallocation of resources, including 
the possibility of having SPL assume responsibility of the contract for services to the institutions. Although it is 
not KCLS’ preference, the option currently being explored is a continued payment by SPL of $104,000, full access 




